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Plaintiff (“Plaintiff”), by and through his attorneys, alleges the following upon 

information and belief, except as to those allegations concerning Plaintiff, which are alleged 

upon personal knowledge. Plaintiff’s information and belief is based upon, among other things, 

his counsel’s investigation, which includes without limitation: (a) review and analysis of 

regulatory filings made by  VASCULAR SOLUTIONS, INC. (“Vascular Solutions” or the 

“Company”), with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”); (b) review 

and analysis of press releases and media reports issued by and disseminated by Vascular 

Solutions; and (c) review of other publicly available information concerning Vascular Solutions. 

NATURE OF THE ACTION AND OVERVIEW 

1. This is a class action on behalf of purchasers of Vascular Solutions securities 

between August 16, 2012 and November 13, 2014, inclusive (the “Class Period”), seeking to 

pursue remedies under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). 

2. Vascular Solutions is a medical device company that focuses on developing 

unique clinical solutions for coronary and peripheral vascular procedures. The Company’s 

product line consists of more than 80 products and services in three categories: catheter products, 

hemostat products and vein products.  The Company delivers its products and services to 

interventional cardiologists, interventional radiologists, electrophysiologists, and vein specialists 

through its direct U.S. sales force and international independent distributor network. 

3. The Company’s Vari-Lase endovenous laser products consist of a laser console, 

procedure kits and accessories used in the treatment of reflux of the great saphenous vein, 

commonly referred to as varicose veins.  The Vari-Lase Short Kit was an endovenous laser kit 

designed to make access into shorter vein segments easier.  The Company sold the Vari-Lase 
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Short Kit from October 2007 through July 2014, after which the device was pulled from the 

market. 

4. On November 13, 2014, a federal grand jury in Texas indicted the Company’s  

Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) Howard Root on one felony count of conspiracy and eight 

misdemeanor charges of selling unapproved and adulterated medical devices.  Prosecutors 

alleged that the Vari-Lase Short Kit was approved only for the treatment of surface or superficial 

veins in the leg, and not for perforator veins, which connect the surface veins to deeper veins in 

the leg muscle.  According to the allegations, the Company marketed the Vari-Lase Short Kit for 

the ablation of perforator veins, which was beyond the Food and Drug Administration’s (“FDA”) 

approved indication.  The allegations indicated that the off-label use of the Vari-Lase Short Kit 

accounted for up to 25% of sales of the device.  

5. On this news, shares of Vascular Solutions declined $6.76 per share, over 22%, to 

close on November 14, 2014, at $23.74 per share, on unusually heavy volume.  

6. Throughout the Class Period, Defendants made false and/or misleading 

statements, as well as failed to disclose material adverse facts about the Company’s business, 

operations, and prospects. Specifically, Defendants made false and/or misleading statements 

and/or failed to disclose: (1) that the Company marketed the Vari-Lase Short Kit to treat varicose 

perforator veins in the leg; (2) that treatment of a leg’s perforator veins was outside the Vari-

Lase Short Kit’s FDA-approved indications; (3) that, as a result, the Company marketed the 

Vari-Lase Short Kit off-label; and (4) that, a result of the foregoing, the Company’s statements 

about its business, operations, and prospects, including statements about the marketing of its the 

Vari-Lase products, were materially false and misleading and/or lacked a reasonable basis.  
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7. As a result of Defendants’ wrongful acts and omissions, and the precipitous 

decline in the market value of the Company’s securities, Plaintiff and other Class members have 

suffered significant losses and damages. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

8. The claims asserted herein arise under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange 

Act (15 U.S.C. §§78j(b) and 78t(a)) and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder by the SEC (17 

C.F.R. § 240.10b-5). 

9. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. §1331 and Section 27 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §78aa). 

10. Venue is proper in this Judicial District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391(b) and 

Section 27 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §78aa(c)).  Substantial acts in furtherance of the 

alleged fraud or the effects of the fraud have occurred in this Judicial District.  Many of the acts 

charged herein, including the preparation and dissemination of materially false and/or misleading 

information, occurred in substantial part in this Judicial District.  Additionally, Vascular 

Solutions’s principal executive offices are located within this Judicial District. 

11. In connection with the acts, transactions, and conduct alleged herein, Defendants 

directly and indirectly used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including the 

United States mail, interstate telephone communications, and the facilities of a national securities 

exchange. 

PARTIES 

12. Plaintiff, as set forth in the accompanying certification, incorporated by reference 

herein, purchased Vascular Solutions common stock during the Class Period, and suffered 
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damages as a result of the federal securities law violations and false and/or misleading statements 

and/or material omissions alleged herein.  

13. Defendant Vascular Solutions is a Minnesota corporation with its principal 

executive offices located at 6464 Sycamore Court North, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55369. 

14.  Defendant Howard Root (“Root”) was, at all relevant times, CEO and a director 

of Vascular Solutions.  

15. Defendant James Hennen (“Hennen”) was, at all relevant times, Chief Financial 

Officer (“CFO”) of Vascular Solutions. 

16. Defendants Root and Hennen are collectively referred to hereinafter as the 

“Individual Defendants.”  The Individual Defendants, because of their positions with the 

Company, possessed the power and authority to control the contents of Vascular Solutions’s 

reports to the SEC, press releases and presentations to securities analysts, money and portfolio 

managers and institutional investors, i.e., the market.  Each defendant was provided with copies 

of the Company’s reports and press releases alleged herein to be misleading prior to, or shortly 

after, their issuance and had the ability and opportunity to prevent their issuance or cause them to 

be corrected.  Because of their positions and access to material non-public information available 

to them, each of these defendants knew that the adverse facts specified herein had not been 

disclosed to, and were being concealed from, the public, and that the positive representations 

which were being made were then materially false and/or misleading.  The Individual 

Defendants are liable for the false statements pleaded herein, as those statements were each 

“group-published” information, the result of the collective actions of the Individual Defendants.  

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS 

Background 
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17. Vascular Solutions is a medical device company that focuses on developing 

unique clinical solutions for coronary and peripheral vascular procedures. The Company’s 

product line consists of more than 80 products and services in three categories: catheter products, 

hemostat products and vein products.  The Company delivers its products and services to 

interventional cardiologists, interventional radiologists, electrophysiologists, and vein specialists 

through its direct U.S. sales force and international independent distributor network. 

18. The Company’s Vari-Lase endovenous laser products consist of a laser console, 

procedure kits and accessories used in the treatment of reflux of the great saphenous vein, 

commonly referred to as varicose veins.  The Vari-Lase Short Kit was an endovenous laser kit 

designed to make access into shorter vein segments easier.  The Company sold the Vari-Lase 

Short Kit from October 2007 through July 2014, after which the device was pulled from the 

market. 

19. On August 2, 2011, the Company filed an Quarterly Report with the SEC on 

Form 10-Q.  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, stated: 

On June 28, 2011, the Company received a subpoena from the U.S. Attorney’s 

Office for the Western District of Texas under the Health Insurance Portability & 

Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) requesting the production of documents 

related to the Company’s Vari-Lase products, and in particular the use of the 

Vari-Lase® Short Kit for the treatment of perforator veins.  The Vari-Lase Short 

Kit has been sold under a 510(k) clearance for the treatment of incompetence and 

reflux of superficial veins in the lower extremity since 2007 with total U.S. sales 

through July 30, 2011 of less than $400,000 (0.2% of the Company’s total U.S. 

sales) and has not been the subject of any reported serious adverse clinical 

event.  The Company is fully complying with this inquiry. 

  

From time to time, the Company is involved in additional legal proceedings 

arising in the normal course of business.  As of the date of this report the 

Company is not a party to any legal proceeding not described in this section in 

which an adverse outcome would reasonably be expected to have a material 

adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition. 

 

Materially False and Misleading 
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Statements Issued During the Class Period 

 

20. The Class Period begins on August 16, 2012.  On this day, the Company filed an 

Current Report with the SEC on Form 8-K.  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, stated: 

On June 28, 2011, the Company received a subpoena from the U.S. Attorney’s 

Office for the Western District of Texas under the Health Insurance Portability & 

Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) requesting the production of documents 

related to the Company’s Vari-Lase products, and in particular the use of the 

Vari-Lase® Short Kit for the treatment of perforator veins.  The Vari-Lase Short 

Kit has been sold under a 510(k) clearance for the treatment of incompetence and 

reflux of superficial veins in the lower extremity since 2007 with total U.S. sales 

through December 31, 2011 of approximately $410,000 (0.1% of the Company’s 

total U.S. sales) and has not been the subject of any reported serious adverse 

clinical event.  On August 14, 2012, the U.S. District Court for the Western 

District of Texas unsealed a qui tam complaint that had been filed on November 

19, 2010 by Desalle Bui, a former sales employee of the Company, which is the 

basis for the U.S. Attorney’s investigation, to which the federal government, after 

three extensions of time, has elected to intervene.  The complaint contains 

allegations of off-label promotion of Vari-Lase products for the treatment of 

perforator veins, re-use of single-use Vari-Lase products and Company-provided 

kickbacks to physicians, resulting in alleged damages to the government of 

approximately $20 million.  The Company believes the allegations are factually 

inaccurate and without merit, and therefore the Company intends to both fully 

comply with the U.S. Attorney’s investigation and defend the litigation. 
 

(Emphasis added). 

 

21. On February 5, 2013, the Company issued a press release entitled, “Vascular 

Solutions Reports Record Fourth Quarter Results.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, 

stated: 

  -  Q4 net revenue increased 14.5% to $25.3 million 

  -  Q4 earnings per share grew 39% to $0.18 

  -  Provides 2013 guidance of $106-$110 million in net revenue and $0.66-

$0.70 EPS 
  

Vascular Solutions, Inc. (Nasdaq: VASC) today reported financial results for the 

fourth quarter ended December 31, 2012. Net revenue increased 14.5% from the 

fourth quarter of 2011 to a record $25.3 million. U.S. product revenue increased 

17% to $21.5 million while international product revenue increased 4% to $3.8 

million compared to the year-ago fourth quarter. Net revenue was within the 

company’s guidance range of $25.0 million to $26.0 million. 
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Gross margin across all product lines was 67.2% in the fourth quarter of 2012, an 

increase from 65.7% in the fourth quarter of 2011, and a sequential increase from 

66.7% in the third quarter of 2012.  Most of the year-over-year improvement in 

product gross margin was the result of increasing sales of higher margin products 

and the January 2012 purchase of the intellectual property relating to the Pronto® 

catheters, which resulted in the elimination of royalty expenses on the Pronto 

products. 

 

Operating income for the fourth quarter was $4.7 million, representing an 

operating margin of 18.5% and an increase from an operating margin of 15.6% in 

the fourth quarter of 2011. 

 

Net income for the fourth quarter of 2012 was $3.1 million, a 41% increase from 

the year-earlier fourth quarter. Earnings per diluted share were $0.18, an increase 

of 39% from the $0.13 reported in the year-earlier quarter. EPS in the fourth 

quarter of 2012 exceeded the company’s guidance range of $0.16-$0.17. 

 

“During the fourth quarter we continued the very strong performance that 

characterized our first three quarters of 2012,” commented Howard Root, Chief 

Executive Officer of Vascular Solutions.   “Revenue reached a record quarterly 

level, and we surpassed our long-term milestone of attaining $100 million in 

annualized sales. For the full year, we are proud to have delivered our 9th 

consecutive year of double-digit product revenue growth while continuing to 

improve our operating profits by an even higher percentage and generating record 

operating cash flows.” 

 

Fourth Quarter Revenue by Product Line 

 

* * * 

 

In the vein products category, fourth quarter net revenues were $4.1 million, an 

increase of 48% from the $2.8 million in the year-earlier quarter. Included in 

fourth quarter vein product revenue was $1.7 million from the reprocessing 

service for ClosureFAST® radiofrequency catheters that was launched in January 

of 2012. “For the full year 2012, our ClosureFAST reprocessing service 

contributed $4.4 million to our revenue. The successful launch of this service has 

allowed us to restore growth to the vein products segment of our business and to 

significantly expand our footprint in the U.S. vein clinic market,” Mr. Root said. 

“Our reprocessing partner, Northeast Scientific, has now successfully reprocessed 

more than 15,000 ClosureFAST vein ablation catheters, and that volume says a 

great deal about the reliability and effectiveness of this program. We expect 

significant growth in our ClosureFAST reprocessing service in 2013, and we also 

intend to benefit by launching additional ancillary products for vein therapy 

procedures in 2013 to our expanded vein clinic customer base.” 

 



 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

8 

Full Year Financial Highlights 

 

On a GAAP-reported basis, Vascular Solutions’ 2012 net revenue increased 9% to 

$98.4 million from $90.0 million in 2011. Accelerated license revenue associated 

with the company’s collaboration with King Pharmaceuticals, Inc. boosted 2011 

net revenue by $2.5 million. Excluding this accelerated licensing revenue in 2011, 

net revenue in 2012 grew 12% from 2011. 

 

U.S. product revenue grew 14% in 2012 to $82.6 million compared to $72.4 

million in 2011, while product revenue in international markets grew 9% to $15.5 

million compared to $14.2 million in 2011. On a worldwide basis, Vascular 

Solutions’ 2012 sales of catheter products grew 16% to $61.3 million, sales of 

hemostat products declined 2% to $22.7 million, and revenue from vein products 

increased 34% to $14.1 million. Product gross margin in 2012 was 66.8% 

compared to 65.5% in 2011. 

 

On a reported basis, operating income in 2012 improved 2% to $15.9 million 

compared to $15.6 million in 2011. In addition to the accelerated licensing 

revenue in 2011, a reduced earn-out payment estimate associated with a previous 

acquisition lowered general and administrative expenses in 2011 by $586,000. 

Excluding the impact of these items in 2011, the company’s 2012 operating 

income improved 27% and the company’s operating margin improved to 16.2% in 

2012 compared to 14.3% in 2011. 

 

On a GAAP basis, earnings per diluted share gained 6% to $0.60 in 2012 from 

$0.57 in 2011. Excluding the accelerated licensing revenue and reduced earn-out 

payment estimate in 2011, Vascular Solutions’ 2012 EPS grew 33% from the 

corresponding $0.45 in 2011. 

 

During 2012, Vascular Solutions generated $19.2 million in cash from operating 

activities, an increase of 32% from the 2011 operating cash flow of $14.6 million. 

 

* * * 
 

“Vascular Solutions has excellent operating cash flows, a strong balance sheet and 

good working capital flexibility, which has allowed us to expand our revenue 

opportunities through tuck-in acquisitions and alliances while continuing to make 

the internal investments that are fueling our future growth objectives,” Mr. Root 

said.  “During 2012, we added 11 new products to our portfolio, including five 

that were brought in through licensing agreements or acquisitions,” Mr. Root 

added.  “As we enter 2013, we have a strong pipeline of internally-developed new 

products and we remain committed to acquisitions or alliances that will allow us 

to leverage our existing call points in interventional cardiology, interventional 

radiology, electrophysiology, and the vein market.” 
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22. On February 5, 2013, Vascular Solutions filed its Annual Report with the SEC on 

Form 10-K for the 2012 fiscal year.  The Company’s Form 10-K was signed by Defendants Root 

and Hennen, and affirmed the results previously announced that day.  Therein, the Company, in 

relevant part, stated: 

On June 28, 2011, we received a subpoena from the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the 

Western District of Texas under the Health Insurance Portability & 

Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) requesting the production of documents 

related to our Vari-Lase products, and in particular the use of the Vari-Lase® 

Short Kit for the treatment of perforator veins.  The Vari-Lase Short Kit has been 

sold under a 510(k) clearance for the treatment of incompetence and reflux of 

superficial veins in the lower extremity since 2007 with total U.S. sales through 

December 31, 2012 of approximately $432,000 (0.1% of the Company’s total 

U.S. sales) and has not been the subject of any reported serious adverse clinical 

event.  On August 14, 2012, the U.S. District Court for the Western District of 

Texas unsealed a qui tam complaint that had been filed on November 19, 2010 by 

Desalle Bui, a former sales employee, which is the basis for the U.S. Attorney’s 

investigation, to which the federal government, after three extensions of time, has 

elected to intervene.  The complaint contains allegations of off-label promotion of 

Vari-Lase products for the treatment of perforator veins, re-use of single-use Vari-

Lase products and kickbacks paid to physicians, resulting in alleged damages to 

the government of approximately $20 million.  An amended complaint limited to 

allegations of off-label promotion of the Vari-Lase Short Kit resulting in an 

unspecified amount of damages and penalties was filed by the U.S. Attorney’s 

Office in December 2012. On January 31, 2013 we filed a motion to dismiss the 

amended claim. We believe the allegations are factually inaccurate and without 

merit, and therefore we intend to both fully comply with the U.S. Attorney’s 

investigation and defend the litigation. 

  

From time to time we are involved in legal proceedings arising in the normal 

course of our business. As of the date of this report we are not a party to any legal 

proceedings not described in this section in which an adverse outcome would 

reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on our results of 

operations or financial condition. 

 

23. On February 4, 2014, the Company issued a press release entitled, “Vascular 

Solutions Reports Record Fourth Quarter Results.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, 

stated: 

- Q4 revenue increased 15% to a record quarterly level of $29.1 million, 

exceeding the top end of guidance 
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- Q4 GAAP EPS of $0.20; adjusted EPS of $0.22, which excludes the impact of 

a litigation settlement, exceeding the top end of guidance and increased 22% 

- 2014 guidance calls for Vascular Solutions’ 11th consecutive year of double-

digit revenue growth to a range of $121 million to $125 million, with GAAP 

EPS growth of over 21% to $0.79-$0.83 

  

Vascular Solutions, Inc. (Nasdaq: VASC) today reported financial results for the 

fourth quarter ended December 31, 2013, and provided financial guidance for the 

first quarter and full year of 2014. 

 

Fourth quarter revenue grew 15% to a record quarterly level of $29.1 million from 

$25.3 million reported in the fourth quarter of 2012, above the company’s 

guidance range for the quarter of $28.0 to $29.0 million. 

 

U.S. net revenue increased nearly 16% to $24.8 million compared to $21.5 

million in the year-ago fourth quarter. International net revenue increased 12% to 

$4.2 million compared to $3.8 million in the year-ago fourth quarter. 

 

Gross margin across all product lines was 66.5% in the fourth quarter compared to 

67.2% in the fourth quarter of 2012. Gross margin between quarters varies based 

on product selling mix and was impacted in 2013 by the substantial growth in the 

reprocessing service, which carries a relatively lower gross margin. 

 

Operating income for the fourth quarter, adjusted to exclude the effects of the 

litigation settlement, was $5.3 million, representing an operating margin of 

18.1%.  Not including the $324,000 expense associated with the U.S. medical 

device excise tax that took effect January 1, 2013, adjusted operating margin in 

the fourth quarter would have been 19.2%.  In the year-ago fourth quarter, 

operating income was $4.7 million, representing an operating margin of 18.5%. 

On a GAAP basis, the fourth quarter 2013 operating income was $4.7 million, 

representing an operating margin of 16.3%. 

 

The company also reported today that it has agreed to settle the qui tam civil 

lawsuit that was intervened in by the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Western 

District of Texas involving allegations of off-label promotion of the company’s 

Vari-Lase® Short Kit endovenous laser product. Under the terms of the 

settlement, the company has agreed to make a one-time payment of $520,000 

and make no admission of fault or liability, and the U.S. Attorney’s Office has 

agreed to dismiss the civil lawsuit with prejudice and release all civil claims that 

were, or could have been, brought against the company in the civil lawsuit. The 

company recorded the $520,000 payment, which is expected to be made in 

February, as litigation expense during the fourth quarter of 2013. The 

settlement of the civil lawsuit will have no effect on the related criminal 

investigation, which the company expects will continue. 

 



 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

11 

On a GAAP basis, fourth quarter net income was $3.5 million in the fourth 

quarter of 2013.   Adjusted net income, excluding the litigation settlement, was 

$3.9 million, an increase of 29% from $3.1 million in the year-earlier fourth 

quarter. 

 

On a GAAP basis, earnings per share in the fourth quarter was $0.20. Adjusted 

EPS was $0.22, an increase of 22% from $0.18 reported in the year-earlier fourth 

quarter. Adjusted EPS in the fourth quarter of 2013 exceeded the company’s 

guidance range, which was $0.19 to $0.20. 

 

“We are very pleased to report another record quarterly performance and to mark 

our tenth consecutive year of double-digit revenue growth,” said Howard Root, 

Chief Executive Officer of Vascular Solutions. “Both our sales and adjusted EPS 

during the fourth quarter again exceeded the top end of our guidance range, and 

we are generating growth in all three of our product segments and from both our 

U.S. and international sales organizations. Looking forward, we are pleased to 

start another year of what we believe will be multiple product launches, double-

digit revenue growth and even higher operating profitability.” 

 

Fourth Quarter Revenue by Product Line 

 

* * * 

 

Vein Products and Services. Net sales of vein products and services were $5.1 

million in the fourth quarter, an increase of 24% from $4.1 million in the year-

earlier quarter. Included in fourth quarter vein product revenue was $2.9 million 

from reprocessing of the Covidien ClosureFAST® radiofrequency catheter, an 

increase of 73% from $1.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2012. “For the full year 

2013, reprocessing contributed $8.2 million to our revenue, up from $4.4 million 

in 2012, as a growing number of vein clinics acknowledge the reliability of 

reprocessed ClosureFAST catheters and embrace the opportunity to significantly 

reduce their costs and medical waste,” Mr. Root said. “Since the introduction of 

our reprocessing service in January of 2012, our reprocessing partner has 

established an excellent record of safety with nearly 45,000 successfully 

reprocessed catheters and no serious adverse patient events reported.” 

 

Full Year Financial Highlights 

 

Vascular Solutions’ net revenue increased 12% to $110.5 million in 2013 from 

$98.4 million in 2012. U.S. product sales grew 14% to $93.7 million compared to 

$82.6 million, while product sales in international markets grew more than 6% to 

$16.5 million compared to $15.5 million in 2012. 

 

On a worldwide basis, Vascular Solutions’ 2013 sales of catheter products grew 

14% to $69.9 million from $61.3 million in 2012. Within catheter products, the 

GuideLiner guide extension catheter grew 41% to $20.8 million, and the Venture 
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catheter, which was acquired and re-launched during 2013, contributed more than 

$1.5 million to sales. 

 

Hemostat products resumed their sales growth in 2013, increasing by 5% to $23.8 

million in 2013 from $22.7 million in 2012. The main drivers of growth in 

hemostat products were the new Vasc Band and Accumed products for radial 

access, which combined contributed nearly $3.2 million to 2013 revenue. 

 

Vein products and services revenue grew 17% to $16.5 million from $14.1 

million in 2012. The growth driver in this business segment was reprocessing, 

which grew 87% to $8.2 million from $4.4 million in 2012. 

  

On a GAAP basis, earnings per diluted share gained 8% to $0.65 in 2013 from 

$0.60 in 2012. Excluding the impact of the Guardian recall expenses in Q1, the 

Terumo litigation settlement in Q3 and the U.S. Attorney civil litigation 

settlement in Q4, Vascular Solutions’ 2013 adjusted EPS grew 22% to $0.73. 

During 2013, Vascular Solutions generated $19.4 million in cash from operating 

activities. 

 

* * * 
 

“During 2013, Vascular Solutions once again demonstrated the success of our 

business model, which is defined by strong revenue growth and increasing 

operating leverage as we launch multiple clinically-relevant products each year 

through our existing direct sales force in the U.S. and our distributor network in 

nearly 50 countries,” Mr. Root said. “As we enter 2014, we are excited about our 

outlook for the year and for many years to come. Our internal pipeline of new 

products, which consists of more than 40 projects at various stages of 

development, is the strongest in the company’s history. Additionally, our large 

direct U.S. sales force and established distributor network make Vascular 

Solutions a sought-after distribution partner and our strong cash position and 

working capital flexibility give us the ability to pursue tuck-in acquisitions that 

will enhance our growth.” 

 

(Emphasis added). 

 

24. On February 4, 2014, Vascular Solutions filed its Annual Report with the SEC on 

Form 10-K for the 2013 fiscal year.  The Company’s Form 10-K was signed by Defendants Root 

and Hennen, and affirmed the results previously announced that day.  Therein, the Company, in 

relevant part, stated: 

On June 28, 2011, we received a subpoena from the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the 

Western District of Texas under the Health Insurance Portability & 
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Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) requesting the production of documents 

related to Vari-Lase products, and in particular the use of the Vari-Lase Short Kit 

for the treatment of perforator veins.  Subsequently, we learned that the U.S. 

Attorney’s Office has commenced a criminal investigation of the same matter.  

The Vari-Lase Short Kit has been sold under a 510(k) clearance for the treatment 

of incompetence and reflux of superficial veins in the lower extremity since 2007 

with total U.S. sales through December 31, 2013 of approximately $479,000 

(0.1% of our total U.S. sales for such period) and has not been the subject of any 

reported serious adverse clinical event.  On August 14, 2012, the United States 

District Court for the Western District of Texas unsealed a qui tam complaint that 

had been filed on November 19, 2010 by Desalle Bui, a former sales employee, 

which is the basis for the U.S. Attorney’s civil investigation, to which the federal 

government, after three extensions of time, elected to intervene.  The complaint 

contains allegations of off-label promotion of Vari-Lase products for the 

treatment of perforator veins, re-use of single-use Vari-Lase products and 

kickbacks to physicians, resulting in alleged damages to the government of 

approximately $20 million.  An amended complaint limited to allegations of off-

label promotion of the Vari-Lase Short Kit resulting in an unspecified amount of 

damages and penalties was filed by the U.S. Attorney’s Office in December 2012.  

On January 22, 2014, we agreed with the U.S. Attorney’s Office to settle the civil 

lawsuit.  The terms of the settlement are that we will make a payment of 

$520,000, we will make no admission of fault or liability, and the U.S. Attorney’s 

Office will dismiss the civil lawsuit with prejudice and release all civil claims that 

were, or could have been, brought against us in the civil lawsuit.  Settlement of 

the civil lawsuit will have no effect upon the criminal investigation, which we 

expect will continue. 

 

From time to time we are involved in legal proceedings arising in the normal 

course of our business. As of the date of this report we are not a party to any legal 

proceedings not described in this section in which an adverse outcome would 

reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on our results of 

operations or financial condition. 

 

25. On July 28, 2014, the United States Department of Justice issued a press release 

entitled, “Vascular Solutions Inc. to Pay $520,000 to Resolve False Claims Allegations Relating 

to Medical Device.”  Therein, the press release, in relevant part, stated: 

Vascular Solutions Inc. (VSI) has agreed to pay $520,000 to resolve allegations 

that it caused false claims to be submitted to federal health programs by 

marketing a medical device for the ablation (or sealing) of perforator veins 

without FDA approval and despite the failure of its own clinical trial, the Justice 

Department announced today. VSI is a medical device company based in 

Minneapolis, Minnesota. 
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“The FDA approval process and clinical studies serve an important role in 

ensuring that federal health care participants receive devices that are medically 

appropriate and necessary,” said Assistant Attorney General Stuart F. Delery for 

the Justice Department’s Civil Division. “We will not permit companies to 

circumvent that process and put profits over patient safety.” 

  

VSI markets and sells medical devices that treat varicose veins by sealing the 

veins with laser energy (endovenous laser ablation). Their products include 

consoles, which generate the laser energy, and accessory kits. Kits include needles 

to access the veins, laser fibers that carry the laser energy, and sheaths that guide 

the laser fiber to the area to be ablated and protect the parts of veins not being 

ablated. In particular, VSI marketed and sold the “Vari-Lase Short Kit” medical 

device. The kit contained a sheath that was shorter than other kits, which made it 

easier to treat vein segments that were shorter in length. 

  

VSI’s “Short Kit” was approved only for the treatment of surface or superficial 

veins in the leg, which run near the surface of the body, and not for perforator 

veins, which connect the surface veins to deeper veins in the leg muscle. The 

government alleged that VSI knowingly promoted the “Short Kit” for the ablation 

of perforator veins even though VSI had attempted to and failed to get FDA 

marketing clearance for ablation of this particular type of vein, and VSI had 

conducted a clinical trial of the “Short Kit” for ablating perforator veins that 

failed to meet both safety and efficacy benchmarks. As a result of this conduct, 

the government alleged that VSI knowingly caused physicians and other 

purchasers of the “Short Kit” to submit false claims to federal health care 

programs for uses of the “Short Kit” that were not reimbursable. 

  

“The settlement announced today should make it clear that the Department of 

Justice will pursue companies that knowingly promote medical devices for 

unapproved uses, causing federal health care programs to pay for services that 

cannot be reimbursed,” said U.S. Attorney Robert Pitman for the Western District 

of Texas. 

  

“Medical device manufacturers that ignore rules designed to protect patients in 

order to boost profits will be held accountable for their actions,” said Special 

Agent in Charge Mike Fields for the U.S. Department of Health and Human 

Services Office of Inspector General (HHS-OIG), Dallas region. “We will 

continue to work with the Department of Justice to root out all forms of waste, 

fraud, and abuse in our federal health care programs.” 

  

The allegations resolved by today’s settlement were raised in a lawsuit filed 

against VSI by DeSalle Bui, a former sales representative at VSI, under the qui 

tam, or whistleblower, provisions of the False Claims Act, which allow private 

citizens with knowledge of false claims to bring civil actions on behalf of the 

government and to share in any recovery. Mr. Bui’s share of the settlement has 

not been determined. 
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The case was handled by the Commercial Litigation Branch of the Justice 

Department’s Civil Division, and the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Western 

District of Texas. Assistance was provided by the Defense Health Agency, the 

Office of Personnel Management, and the HHS-OIG and Office of General 

Counsel. 

  

This settlement illustrates the government’s emphasis on combating health care 

fraud and marks another achievement for the Health Care Fraud Prevention and 

Enforcement Action Team (HEAT) initiative, which was announced in May 2009 

by the Attorney General and the Secretary of Health and Human Services. The 

partnership between the two departments has focused efforts to reduce and 

prevent Medicare and Medicaid financial fraud through enhanced cooperation. 

One of the most powerful tools in this effort is the False Claims Act. Since 

January 2009, the Justice Department has recovered a total of more than $20.2 

billion through False Claims Act cases, with more than $14 billion of that amount 

recovered in cases involving fraud against federal health care programs. 

  

The claims settled by this agreement are allegations only, and there has been no 

determination of liability. The lawsuit is captioned United States ex rel. DeSalle 

Bui v. Vascular Solutions, Inc., No. A10CA883-SS (W.D. Tex.). 

 

26. On July 28, 2014, the Company issued a press release entitled, “Vascular 

Solutions Comments on Justice Department Press Release Concerning Qui Tam Lawsuit 

Settlement Agreement.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, stated: 

In response to a press release issued today by the Department of Justice 

concerning the settlement of a qui tam lawsuit, Vascular Solutions, Inc. 

(Nasdaq:VASC) issued the following comment: 

 

“An agreement to settle this lawsuit was previously reached on January 22, 2014 

and previously disclosed in the Company’s public filings, with the only event 

occurring today being the long-delayed signing of the formal settlement 

agreement. The terms of the settlement are that the Company will make a 

payment of $520,000, the Company will make no admission of fault or liability, 

and the U.S. Attorneys’ Office will dismiss the civil lawsuit with prejudice and 

release all civil claims brought against the company in the civil lawsuit. The press 

release issued today by the Department of Justice contains numerous allegations 

which the Company continues to deny.” 

 

27. The statements contained in ¶¶__-__, __ were materially false and/or misleading 

when made because defendants failed to disclose or indicate the following: (1) that the Company 
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marketed the Vari-Lase Short Kit to treat varicose perforator veins in the leg; (2) that treatment 

of a leg’s perforator veins was outside the Vari-Lase Short Kit’s FDA-approved indications; (3) 

that, as a result, the Company marketed the Vari-Lase Short Kit off-label; and (4) that, a result of 

the foregoing, the Company’s statements about its business, operations, and prospects, including 

statements about the marketing of its the Vari-Lase products, were materially false and 

misleading and/or lacked a reasonable basis.  

Disclosures at the End of the Class Period  

28. On November 13, 2014, the Company issued a press release entitled, “Statement 

of Vascular Solutions on Grand Jury Indictment.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, 

stated: 

In response to an indictment returned today by a federal grand jury in the Western 

District of Texas, Vascular Solutions, Inc. (VASC) issued the following 

statement: 

 

“The allegations against us are false and we will contest them vigorously. The 

indictment is the profoundly flawed product of government attorneys who have 

conducted a misguided and abusive investigation. Without the company being 

able to present any information to the grand jury, today’s action is not surprising. 

It is, however, fundamentally wrong and profoundly unjust. 

 

“As previously disclosed, the U.S. Attorney’s Office in San Antonio and the 

Consumer Protection Branch of the Department of Justice conducted a four-year 

investigation concerning the since-discontinued Short Kit version of our Vari-

Lase product for the treatment of varicose veins in the leg. That investigation led 

to today’s indictment, which alleges that members of Vascular Solutions’ sales 

force spoke to physicians about the use of the Short Kit to treat varicose 

perforator veins in the leg. The indictment further alleges that the treatment of a 

leg’s perforator veins, as opposed to the more-commonly treated saphenous veins, 

is outside the Short Kit’s labeled indications and therefore constitutes an ‘off-

label’ use. 

 

“We vehemently disagree with both allegations: we did not engage in any illegal 

off-label promotion of the Short Kit, nor did we engage in any false or misleading 

conduct.  
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“Sales of the Short Kit for all clinical uses during the seven years it was on the 

U.S. market were $534,000, representing just 0.1% of our total U.S. sales during 

those years. Over two-thirds of our sales representatives never sold even a single 

Short Kit, and the Short Kit has never been the subject of any reported serious 

adverse event in any patient.  

 

“The discrepancy between the insignificance of our Short Kit product and the 

severity of the government’s actions in this matter is simply astonishing. The 

reason for that discrepancy will become readily apparent when the government 

attorneys’ stated motives and abusive conduct in this investigation are disclosed 

in our upcoming court filings. 

 

“We cooperated fully during the government’s investigation and pointed out the 

flaws in the government’s theories and evidentiary assumptions. While confident 

in our innocence, in order to avoid the costs and distractions of this matter we 

tried repeatedly to find a reasonable resolution, just as we achieved with the 

related civil lawsuit that settled earlier this year, but to no avail. 

 

“We will defend our company and our employees against these improper and 

false allegations through trial where we are confident of prevailing. We have the 

resources to vigorously contest the allegations and an excellent legal team in 

place.  

 

“While proceeding with our legal defense, we plan to make no change to our 

business operations or personnel as a result of this matter.” 

 

John Erb, Chairman of the Board of Vascular Solutions, added the following 

statement: 

 

“I have led the independent members of the Board of Directors in providing 

active direction to and oversight of the company’s response to this investigation. 

The Board of Directors unanimously supports management’s handling of this 

matter and the company’s defense against these unwarranted charges. The Board 

of Directors has determined that it is appropriate and in the best interests of 

Vascular Solutions that Howard Root continue as CEO throughout this legal 

process and to its successful resolution at trial. 

 

“To put this matter into perspective, since its inception in 1997, Vascular 

Solutions has created over 450 well-paid American jobs and developed over 80 

new medical devices that improve patients’ lives. The company has a complete 

and detailed compliance program, and this matter is the only allegation of a sales 

promotion issue that the company has received in its 17-year history. In that 

context, today’s indictment is both disproportionate and unjust.” 

 

A grand jury indictment is not a verdict or finding of guilt, but rather a 

determination of whether a crime should be charged. Only the prosecuting 
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attorney is allowed to present evidence to the grand jury, and no judge or defense 

attorney is present during the grand jury sessions. The validity of the charges 

included in the indictment is determined only by a jury following trial.  

 

Background 

 

The Vari-Lase Short Kit was sold in the U.S. from October 2007 through July 

2014 under an FDA 510(k) clearance for the treatment of varicose veins and 

varicosities associated with superficial reflux of the great saphenous vein and for 

treatment of incompetence and reflux of superficial veins in the lower extremity. 

The criminal investigation is related to a qui tam “whistle-blower” civil lawsuit 

filed in 2010. The U.S. Attorney’s office for the Western District of Texas 

intervened in the civil lawsuit, in part, in 2012. On January 22, 2014, the company 

reached an agreement with the Department of Justice to settle the civil lawsuit, 

and a settlement agreement was fully executed on July 28, 2014. Under the terms 

of that agreement, the company paid $520,000 with no admission of fault or 

liability, and the U.S. Attorney’s office supported dismissal of the civil lawsuit 

with prejudice and released all civil claims brought against the company in the 

civil lawsuit. As previously disclosed, the settlement of the civil lawsuit had no 

effect upon the criminal investigation. 

 

The indictment returned today by a federal grand jury in the Western District of 

Texas charges Vascular Solutions and its Chief Executive Officer with 

introducing adulterated and misbranded medical devices into interstate commerce 

and conspiracy to introduce adulterated and misbranded medical devices into 

interstate commerce. 

 

As has been previously disclosed, conviction of the company of a crime under 

statutes related to fraud could result in the company’s exclusion from 

participation in all U.S. government health care programs including Medicare and 

Medicaid, which would substantially adversely affect the company’s ability to 

continue to conduct its business. Conviction of an employee of a crime under 

statutes related to misbranding and health care fraud could result in termination of 

the employee’s employment with the company and prohibition from employment 

with any health care company that contracts with the federal government. 

 

Additional information concerning this matter is included in a Form 8-K report 

filed today with the Securities and Exchange Commission and available on the 

SEC website. 

 

29. On this news, shares of Vascular Solutions declined $6.76 per share, over 22%, to 

close on November 14, 2014, at $23.74 per share, on unusually heavy volume.  

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 
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30. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil 

Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a class, consisting of all those who purchased Vascular 

Solutions’s securities between August 16, 2012 and November 13, 2014, inclusive (the “Class 

Period”) and who were damaged thereby (the “Class”).  Excluded from the Class are Defendants, 

the officers and directors of the Company, at all relevant times, members of their immediate 

families and their legal representatives, heirs, successors or assigns and any entity in which 

Defendants have or had a controlling interest. 

31. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is 

impracticable.  Throughout the Class Period, Vascular Solutions’s securities were actively traded 

on the Nasdaq Stock Market (the “NASDAQ”).  While the exact number of Class members is 

unknown to Plaintiff at this time and can only be ascertained through appropriate discovery, 

Plaintiff believes that there are hundreds or thousands of members in the proposed Class.  

Millions of Vascular Solutions shares were traded publicly during the Class Period on the 

NASDAQ.  As of October 17, 2014, Vascular Solutions had 17,176,422 shares of common stock 

outstanding.  Record owners and other members of the Class may be identified from records 

maintained by Vascular Solutions or its transfer agent and may be notified of the pendency of 

this action by mail, using the form of notice similar to that customarily used in securities class 

actions. 

32. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all 

members of the Class are similarly affected by Defendants’ wrongful conduct in violation of 

federal law that is complained of herein.    

33. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the 

Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation.  
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34. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and 

predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class.  Among the 

questions of law and fact common to the Class are: 

 (a) whether the federal securities laws were violated by Defendants’ acts as 

alleged herein;  

 (b) whether statements made by Defendants to the investing public during the 

Class Period omitted and/or misrepresented material facts about the business, operations, and 

prospects of Vascular Solutions; and  

 (c) to what extent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the 

proper measure of damages. 

35. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable.  Furthermore, as 

the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and 

burden of individual litigation makes it impossible for members of the Class to individually 

redress the wrongs done to them.  There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as 

a class action.  

UNDISCLOSED ADVERSE FACTS 

36. The market for Vascular Solutions’s securities was open, well-developed and 

efficient at all relevant times.  As a result of these materially false and/or misleading statements, 

and/or failures to disclose, Vascular Solutions’s securities traded at artificially inflated prices 

during the Class Period.  Plaintiff and other members of the Class purchased or otherwise 

acquired Vascular Solutions’s securities relying upon the integrity of the market price of the 
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Company’s securities and market information relating to Vascular Solutions, and have been 

damaged thereby. 

37. During the Class Period, Defendants materially misled the investing public, 

thereby inflating the price of Vascular Solutions’s securities, by publicly issuing false and/or 

misleading statements and/or omitting to disclose material facts necessary to make Defendants’ 

statements, as set forth herein, not false and/or misleading.  Said statements and omissions were 

materially false and/or misleading in that they failed to disclose material adverse information 

and/or misrepresented the truth about Vascular Solutions’s business, operations, and prospects as 

alleged herein. 

38. At all relevant times, the material misrepresentations and omissions particularized 

in this Complaint directly or proximately caused or were a substantial contributing cause of the 

damages sustained by Plaintiff and other members of the Class.  As described herein, during the 

Class Period, Defendants made or caused to be made a series of materially false and/or 

misleading statements about Vascular Solutions’s financial well-being and prospects.  These 

material misstatements and/or omissions had the cause and effect of creating in the market an 

unrealistically positive assessment of the Company and its financial well-being and prospects, 

thus causing the Company’s securities to be overvalued and artificially inflated at all relevant 

times.  Defendants’ materially false and/or misleading statements during the Class Period 

resulted in Plaintiff and other members of the Class purchasing the Company’s securities at 

artificially inflated prices, thus causing the damages complained of herein.  

LOSS CAUSATION 

39. Defendants’ wrongful conduct, as alleged herein, directly and proximately caused 

the economic loss suffered by Plaintiff and the Class.   
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40. During the Class Period, Plaintiff and the Class purchased Vascular Solutions’s 

securities at artificially inflated prices and were damaged thereby.  The price of the Company’s 

securities significantly declined when the misrepresentations made to the market, and/or the 

information alleged herein to have been concealed from the market, and/or the effects thereof, 

were revealed, causing investors’ losses. 

SCIENTER ALLEGATIONS 

41. As alleged herein, Defendants acted with scienter in that Defendants knew that 

the public documents and statements issued or disseminated in the name of the Company were 

materially false and/or misleading; knew that such statements or documents would be issued or 

disseminated to the investing public; and knowingly and substantially participated or acquiesced 

in the issuance or dissemination of such statements or documents as primary violations of the 

federal securities laws.  As set forth elsewhere herein in detail, Defendants, by virtue of their 

receipt of information reflecting the true facts regarding Vascular Solutions, his/her control over, 

and/or receipt and/or modification of Vascular Solutions’s allegedly materially misleading 

misstatements and/or their associations with the Company which made them privy to 

confidential proprietary information concerning Vascular Solutions, participated in the 

fraudulent scheme alleged herein.  

APPLICABILITY OF PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE 

(FRAUD-ON-THE-MARKET DOCTRINE) 
 

42. The market for Vascular Solutions’s securities was open, well-developed and 

efficient at all relevant times.  As a result of the materially false and/or misleading statements 

and/or failures to disclose, Vascular Solutions’s securities traded at artificially inflated prices 

during the Class Period.  On November 12, 2014, the Company’s stock closed at a Class Period 

high of $30.54 per share.  Plaintiff and other members of the Class purchased or otherwise 
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acquired the Company’s securities relying upon the integrity of the market price of Vascular 

Solutions’s securities and market information relating to Vascular Solutions, and have been 

damaged thereby. 

43. During the Class Period, the artificial inflation of Vascular Solutions’s stock was 

caused by the material misrepresentations and/or omissions particularized in this Complaint 

causing the damages sustained by Plaintiff and other members of the Class.  As described herein, 

during the Class Period, Defendants made or caused to be made a series of materially false 

and/or misleading statements about Vascular Solutions’s business, prospects, and operations.  

These material misstatements and/or omissions created an unrealistically positive assessment of 

Vascular Solutions and its business, operations, and prospects, thus causing the price of the 

Company’s securities to be artificially inflated at all relevant times, and when disclosed, 

negatively affected the value of the Company stock.  Defendants’ materially false and/or 

misleading statements during the Class Period resulted in Plaintiff and other members of the 

Class purchasing the Company’s securities at such artificially inflated prices, and each of them 

has been damaged as a result.   

44. At all relevant times, the market for Vascular Solutions’s securities was an 

efficient market for the following reasons, among others: 

 (a)  Vascular Solutions stock met the requirements for listing, and was listed 

and actively traded on the NASDAQ, a highly efficient and automated market; 

 (b)  As a regulated issuer, Vascular Solutions filed periodic public reports with 

the SEC and/or the NASDAQ; 

 (c)  Vascular Solutions regularly communicated with public investors via 

established market communication mechanisms, including through regular dissemination of 
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press releases on the national circuits of major newswire services and through other wide-

ranging public disclosures, such as communications with the financial press and other similar 

reporting services; and/or 

 (d) Vascular Solutions was followed by securities analysts employed by 

brokerage firms who wrote reports about the Company, and these reports were distributed to the 

sales force and certain customers of their respective brokerage firms.  Each of these reports was 

publicly available and entered the public marketplace.  

45. As a result of the foregoing, the market for Vascular Solutions’s securities 

promptly digested current information regarding Vascular Solutions from all publicly available 

sources and reflected such information in Vascular Solutions’s stock price. Under these 

circumstances, all purchasers of Vascular Solutions’s securities during the Class Period suffered 

similar injury through their purchase of Vascular Solutions’s securities at artificially inflated 

prices and a presumption of reliance applies.   

NO SAFE HARBOR 

46. The statutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under certain  

circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false statements pleaded in this Complaint. 

The statements alleged to be false and misleading herein all relate to then-existing facts and 

conditions. In addition, to the extent certain of the statements alleged to be false may be 

characterized as forward looking, they were not identified as “forward-looking statements” when 

made and there were no meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors that 

could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the purportedly forward-looking 

statements. In the alternative, to the extent that the statutory safe harbor is determined to apply to 

any forward-looking statements pleaded herein, Defendants are liable for those false forward-
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looking statements because at the time each of those forward-looking statements was made, the 

speaker had actual knowledge that the forward-looking statement was materially false or 

misleading, and/or the forward-looking statement was authorized or approved by an executive 

officer of Vascular Solutions who knew that the statement was false when made.  

FIRST CLAIM 

Violation of Section 10(b) of 

The Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 

Promulgated Thereunder Against All Defendants 
 

47. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if 

fully set forth herein.  

48. During the Class Period, Defendants carried out a plan, scheme and course of 

conduct which was intended to and, throughout the Class Period, did: (i) deceive the investing 

public, including Plaintiff and other Class members, as alleged herein; and (ii) cause Plaintiff and 

other members of the Class to purchase Vascular Solutions’s securities at artificially inflated 

prices.  In furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct, defendants, and each 

of them, took the actions set forth herein. 

49. Defendants (i) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (ii) made 

untrue statements of material fact and/or omitted to state material facts necessary to make the 

statements not misleading; and (iii) engaged in acts, practices, and a course of business which 

operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of the Company’s securities in an effort to 

maintain artificially high market prices for Vascular Solutions’s securities in violation of Section 

10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5.  All Defendants are sued either as primary 

participants in the wrongful and illegal conduct charged herein or as controlling persons as 

alleged below.   
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50. Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the use, means 

or instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a 

continuous course of conduct to conceal adverse material information about Vascular Solutions’s 

financial well-being and prospects, as specified herein.   

51. These defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud, while in 

possession of material adverse non-public information and engaged in acts, practices, and a 

course of conduct as alleged herein in an effort to assure investors of Vascular Solutions’s value 

and performance and continued substantial growth, which included the making of, or the 

participation in the making of, untrue statements of material facts and/or omitting to state 

material facts necessary in order to make the statements made about Vascular Solutions and its 

business operations and future prospects in light of the circumstances under which they were 

made, not misleading, as set forth more particularly herein, and engaged in transactions, 

practices and a course of business which operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of 

the Company’s securities during the Class Period.  

52. Each of the Individual Defendants’ primary liability, and controlling person 

liability, arises from the following facts: (i) the Individual Defendants were high-level executives 

and/or directors at the Company during the Class Period and members of the Company’s 

management team or had control thereof; (ii) each of these defendants, by virtue of their 

responsibilities and activities as a senior officer and/or director of the Company, was privy to and 

participated in the creation, development and reporting of the Company’s internal budgets, plans, 

projections and/or reports; (iii) each of these defendants enjoyed significant personal contact and 

familiarity with the other defendants and was advised of, and had access to, other members of the 

Company’s management team, internal reports and other data and information about the 
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Company’s finances, operations, and sales at all relevant times; and (iv) each of these defendants 

was aware of the Company’s dissemination of information to the investing public which they 

knew and/or recklessly disregarded was materially false and misleading.  

53. The defendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and/or omissions 

of material facts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed 

to ascertain and to disclose such facts, even though such facts were available to them. Such 

defendants’ material misrepresentations and/or omissions were done knowingly or recklessly and 

for the purpose and effect of concealing Vascular Solutions’s financial well-being and prospects 

from the investing public and supporting the artificially inflated price of its securities.  As 

demonstrated by Defendants’ overstatements and/or misstatements of the Company’s business, 

operations, financial well-being, and prospects throughout the Class Period, Defendants, if they 

did not have actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and/or omissions alleged, were reckless 

in failing to obtain such knowledge by deliberately refraining from taking those steps necessary 

to discover whether those statements were false or misleading.  

54. As a result of the dissemination of the materially false and/or misleading 

information and/or failure to disclose material facts, as set forth above, the market price of 

Vascular Solutions’s securities was artificially inflated during the Class Period.  In ignorance of 

the fact that market prices of the Company’s securities were artificially inflated, and relying 

directly or indirectly on the false and misleading statements made by Defendants, or upon the 

integrity of the market in which the securities trades, and/or in the absence of material adverse 

information that was known to or recklessly disregarded by Defendants, but not disclosed in 

public statements by Defendants during the Class Period, Plaintiff and the other members of the 
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Class acquired Vascular Solutions’s securities during the Class Period at artificially high prices 

and were damaged thereby. 

55. At the time of said misrepresentations and/or omissions, Plaintiff and other 

members of the Class were ignorant of their falsity, and believed them to be true.  Had Plaintiff 

and the other members of the Class and the marketplace known the truth regarding the problems 

that Vascular Solutions was experiencing, which were not disclosed by Defendants, Plaintiff and 

other members of the Class would not have purchased or otherwise acquired their Vascular 

Solutions securities, or, if they had acquired such securities during the Class Period, they would 

not have done so at the artificially inflated prices which they paid. 

56. By virtue of the foregoing, Defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the 

Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.  

57. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and 

the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respective purchases 

and sales of the Company’s securities during the Class Period.  

SECOND CLAIM 

Violation of Section 20(a) of  

The Exchange Act Against the Individual Defendants 

58. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if 

fully set forth herein.  

59. The Individual Defendants acted as controlling persons of Vascular Solutions 

within the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as alleged herein.  By virtue of their 

high-level positions, and their ownership and contractual rights, participation in and/or 

awareness of the Company’s operations and/or intimate knowledge of the false financial 

statements filed by the Company with the SEC and disseminated to the investing public, the 

Individual Defendants had the power to influence and control and did influence and control, 
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directly or indirectly, the decision-making of the Company, including the content and 

dissemination of the various statements which Plaintiff contends are false and misleading.  The 

Individual Defendants were provided with or had unlimited access to copies of the Company’s 

reports, press releases, public filings and other statements alleged by Plaintiff to be misleading 

prior to and/or shortly after these statements were issued and had the ability to prevent the 

issuance of the statements or cause the statements to be corrected.  

60. In particular, each of these Defendants had direct and supervisory involvement in 

the day-to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, is presumed to have had the power to 

control or influence the particular transactions giving rise to the securities violations as alleged 

herein, and exercised the same.  

61. As set forth above, Vascular Solutions and the Individual Defendants each 

violated Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 by their acts and/or omissions as alleged in this 

Complaint.  By virtue of their positions as controlling persons, the Individual Defendants are 

liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act.  As a direct and proximate result of 

Defendants’ wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and other members of the Class suffered damages in 

connection with their purchases of the Company’s securities during the Class Period.  

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows: 

(a) Determining that this action is a proper class action under Rule 23 of the Federal 

Rules of Civil Procedure; 

(b) Awarding compensatory damages in favor of Plaintiff and the other Class 

members against all defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as a result of 

Defendants’ wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon; 



 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

30 

(c) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses incurred in 

this action, including counsel fees and expert fees; and  

(d) Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.  

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury. 

DATED:      

 

     By:___DRAFT________________ 
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